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[Shri Bhupesh Gupta.] 
impress upon the Minister, since he comes 
from Bihar, that charity should begin at home. 
Let him face the music. 

MR. CHAIRMAN: You press a little too 
much. Now, the House stands adjourned till 
2.30 in the afternoon. 

The House adjourned for lunch at 
twenty-two minutes past one of the 
clock. 

THE HOUSE REASSEMBLED AFTER LUNCH AT HALT 
PAST TWO OP THE CLOCK, THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN 
in the Chair. 

MOTION RE: INDO-PAKISTAN 
AGREEMENT RELATING TO GUJARAT-

WEST PAKISTAN BORDER— •onto*. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: I have to 
announce that the Finance Minister will lay a 
statement on the Table of iie House at 5 P.M. 
Prof  M. B. Lai. 

PROP. M. B. LAL (Uttar Pradesh): Madam, 
most of us in India have always stood for an 
amicable settlement and friendly relations 
between India and Pakistan and have regarded 
the citizens of these two coun'ries as blood-
brothers, but unfortunately the policy of 
Pakistan towards India ever since 
independence has consistently been one of 
hostility. She has constantly tried to undermine 
the strength, s'ability and prestige of India. In 
Hie circumstances, India has no option but to 
take note of the hostile attitude of Pakistan and 
to project Indian policy to the situation that is 
being constancy created by Pakistan. Madam. I 
am sorry to sav that Government has failed to 
evolve and pursue a consistent policy in regard 
to Pakistan. Our Government has allowed itself 
to suffer f-om hesitation, vacillation and 
comolacencv and has eonsequently failed to 
take necessary steps at the prooer moment to 
protect India's territorial ipto<»rity and vital 
national inferest9. This Is •bvious from the fact 
that though the 

Government had sufficient knowledge of 
Pakistan's attitude with regard to the Rann of 
Kutch, adequate a.ep* were not taken to 
strengthen our defence on that border. It was 
suggested by certain experts that six roads 
must be built to strengthen our position in the 
Rann of Kutch, but so far not a single road has 
been built. Perhaps the Government hoped that 
the Indo-Pakistan agreements of 1959 and 
1960 provided sufficient protection against 
aggression, but in their hopes they were 
absolutely mistaken* firstly because these 
agreements wet* so badly drafted that under 
then Pakistan could continue to lay it* claims 
for 3,500 square miles of the Rann of Kutch as 
its own territory; though our Government has 
recently tended to maintain that even when this 
agreement was arrived at they regarded the 
dispute as only a boundary dispute. Secondly, 
despite these agreements Pakistan continued 
its intrusions into Indian territory and their 
citizens continued to have unlawful infiltration 
into our country. Madam, I beg to submit that 
Pakistan's understanding with India in 1959 
and 1960 was just a smokescreen behind which 
Pakistan hatched her plans for aggression on 
India's Kutch border. This is obvious by what 
happened on that bolder this summer. This is 
obvious by the fad that even after the Indo-
Pakistan agreements of 1959 and 1960, Pakis-
tan continued its hostile activities on variaus 
Indian borders. The failure of our Government 
to realise the implications of the 1959 and 
1960 agreements and its further unprepa-
edhess to meet Pakistani aggression on the 
Kutch border have clea-ly demonstrated the 
incompetence of the Government and have 
exposed the hoi-lowness of their tall talks 
about their vigilance and defence 
preparedness- 

Madam, just when Pakistan decided to 
commit aggression on the Rann of Kutch, we 
did not have sufficient forces there to meet the 
aggression. It has been told to us that when    
the 
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situation developed in the Rami    of Ku ch 
the military  wished  that the authority tor its 
defence be handed over to weir cnarge as 
soon as possible and yet ou- Government 
delayed and delayed  and    for    weeks    
tried to face the situation with the help of the 
police force that was there.   The agreements 
of  1959 and  I960    were, I beg to submit, 
rendered null    and <roid by Pakistan herse f 
the moment she committed aggression in the 
Rann Of Kutch.    We all know    that    just 
when the S eond Word War started the Soviet 
Union  and  Germany entered   into   an   
agreement,   but  wh;n the German forces 
enterei East rn Europe against the spirit of 
that agreement, in view of that aggression, 
the Russo-German pact of 1939 stood null 
and void.    So, the moment Pakistan 
attacked the Rann of Kutch, that moment the 
agreements of 1959 and 1960 were rendered 
null    and    void    by Pakistan.    
Unfortunately,    our    Government failed to 
take note of    this fact.   In fact, strangely    
enough    the Government managed to forget    
the «rv existence of the agreements arrived at 
between the two   Governments *t a time 
when the Prime    Minister himself was an 
important member of the Cabinet and    when    
the   Ex'er-nal Affairs Minister had a 
considerable hand in promoting the 
conclusion of these  aereements.   I beg to 
submit   that   if   the   Government   had 
taken due note of this fact, the Government  
could  omject India's policy $rope~lv i>to 
the world.   It was pos-iible for the 
Government of India to nay that even jf 
Pakistan was not satis-8ed with the ways of 
India. Pakistan was bound to demand a 
tribunal rather than to commit agression on 
the Ra^n of Kutch. But unfortunately our 
diplomacy failed and even when an 
aggTesvon was committed on    India, me 
world failed to understand  fhat Pakistan bad 
committed an a«"»resston, and therefore 
most of the State* In me world -em»i«ed 
almost silent and onlT tome of tbem wished 
us sorne-laow to come to a peaceful 
settlement m thla matter. 

Madam, I feel that after the Pakistani 
aggression on the Rann of Kutch the 
agreements of 1959 and 1960 s ood null and 
void and it is our duty    to review  our  policy   
with   regard     to Pakistan in the context of .he 
present situation.   I beg to submit,    Madam, 
tha: the year 1965 is very    different from the 
years 1959 and 1960.   In the years 1959 and 
1960    Pakistan    was committed  to  the 
United States    of America    for    containing    
Communism of China and the Soviet Union. In 
1965 China and Pakistan were   in collusion 
and the two were more or less commi ted to 
have a joint pressure on India and to undermine 
India's dignity     and     territorial     integrity. 
Again, Madam, we know that in 11,65 Pakistan 
was training her armed forces   and   other   
personnel   in   guerilla wa fare and everbody 
could conclude that this training in guerilla 
warfare was not intended to be used against the 
Soviet Union    or    even    against Afghanistan 
with which    China    had good relations 
though Pakistan might not have good relations.   
This training was intended to be used against 
India and i   was India's duty to prepare her 
armed forces and prepare tha whole countrv to 
face the    situation which the guerilla warfa e    
in    the sub-continent  of India  might  create I 
do not wish to probe into all  the secrets of the 
defences of the country, and it is just possible 
that    the Government  of India  might  be  also 
taking some counter-measures to prepare 
India's forces for meeting    the guerilla warfare 
also.   But I do feel. Madam,  that India's  
foreign     policy and diplomacy were no' 
projected to the new situation. 

Madam, Pakistan's intrusions and hostility 
had also considerably increased. In 1959 and 
1960 thev entered into an agreement with us 
that all disputes would be peacefully settled 
and, if not amicably se tied, through mutual 
negotiation, would be referred to a tribunal. 
But Pakistan continued to make intrusions o« 
all fronts and these intrusions increased In 
number.   All these racw 
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consideration. But, Madam, I beg to submit 
that our Government however continued its 
piecemeal and spineless policy to wards 
Pakistan and signed the recent Kutch 
agreement. Through this agreement our 
Government has agreed to refer the lndo-
Pakistan border dispute to a tribunal thus 
voluntarily agreeing to the erosion of our 
sovereignty. Moreover in my opinion and in 
the opinion of the Party to which I belong, this 
act constitutes a violation of solemn pledge 
given to the Parliament by our Prime Minister. 

Madam, if we carefully study the Kutch 
agreement, we will find various defects in the 
agreement besides the debatable question 
whether the tribunal should consist of 
members none of whom belongs to India and 
Pakis an. Our Prime Minister even today 
continues to assert that we stand onlv for the 
demarcation of the boundary, for the 
alignment of the boundary. But if we look into 
Article 3, it says: 

(i) In view of the fact that: 

(A) India claims that there is no 
territorial dispute as t^ere is a well 
established boundary running roughly 
along the northern edge of the Rann of 
Kutch as shown in the pre-partition 
maps, which needs to be dema catad on 
the ground; 

(B) Pakis'an claims that the border 
between India and Pakistan in the Rann 
of Kutch runs roughly along the 24th 
Parallel as is clear from several pre-pati-
tion and post-partition documents and 
therefore the dispute involves some  
3,500  square miles of ter- 

.  ritory; 

(C) At discussions in January 
1950, it was a?-eed bv Ministers 
of the two Governments that 
they " would" each collect fcHfie" 
date. resardi"U the Kutch-Sind 
boundary and that further    dis- 

cussions would be held later with a view 
to arriving at a se.tlement of this dispute; 

as soon as officials have finished the task 
referred to in Article 2(vi), which in any case 
will not be later than one month after the 
cease-fire, Ministe s of the two Governments 
will meet in order to agree on the 
determination of the border in the. light of 
their respective claims, and the arrangements 
for its demarca- • tion. At this meeting and at 
any. proceeding before the Tribunal referred 
to in Aticle 3(ii) and (iv) below each 
Governmen1 will be free to present and 
develop their case in full." 

From this it is but obvious that whatever our 
assertions might be the tribunal would be 
forced fo decide first whether it was a 
territorial dispute o~ it was a boMidqrv 
disnute, whether the clarri of Pakistan wis a 
correct one O" Trd'a's attitude with regard to 
the border was a corect one. Thus if ^ot 
ev.yif.itiv at least impli-ci lv, we recosnise the 
right of Pak-j^tqn to cn"tei» her riiim to 3,509 
sauare miles of our territory. 

THE   DEPUTY   CHATRMAN:    YOU have 
taken  twei'y minutes 

PPO*\ M. B. LALL: I wi'l finish in a few 
minutes. 
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Madam, it might be said that, when I say that 
the Kashmir issue and the Kutch issue need to 
be viewed    together in the context of the    
general foreign policy of Pakistan, I am wise af 
er events but I feel that the Government will 
not try to advance that argument because in the 
Government's document itself it is said that in 
the aeven-month period from January   to July, 
1965, the number of incidents on the Cease fire 
line in Kashmir    was over 1,800 a- compared 
to 1,522 in the who'e year 1964, and unusual 
interest was shown by Pakistan in our line of 
communication which was threatened 
repeatedly.   In the Kargil area where H lies 
close to the Cease-fir? line, on the night of 16-
17th May, 1965, Pakistani  tropps  started  
heavy firing on our pickets and attacking with 
force. All these things clearly indicate *hat 
before June, 1965 when    this    Kutch 
Agreement -was  arrived  at.  the  f-nv-ernment 
knew what the policy of Pakistan was an,-5! 
yet, it faFed to reorient i*3 policy in the ligM 
of the new situation created by Pakistan. I may 
further point  out that while th*»    Gov-
ernment documents only    point    out that 
Pakistan was drying to cut    our passage  from  
Srinagar to Leh,  actually infiltration had 
started in    May, rot  only  on  August  5 th    
night,    in Kashmir. 

Madam, I feel that India needs a resoiu'e 
policv fo" the defence nf Kashmir an-* the 
repudiation of the Knt^h Agreement; we hope 
that the platitudes ahout oeaceful settlement 
with Pakistan and Indo-Pak Confederation 
wouM now cea-e India's defence policy, 
unfortunately, will have lei be based on the 
assumption that for years to come China an-1 
Pakistan would work in collusion and wou'd 
constitute a serious threat '.o India's freedom 
and integrity. Madam, I know ghat we. the 
people of India. stan-» for •peace. We know 
that our great leaders Buddha and Gandhi 
stood for |>eace But I feel '.hat none of the two 
taught u to be cowards. Gandhiji has 
repeated'y said that.satyagraha was ot meant to 
train people in cowar- 

dice but to train people to sacrifice' heir all for 
the cause of the freedom of the country. We 
have to preserve our freedom against the 
possible collusion  and simultaneous     attack     
of China and Pakistan. Though I do not' wish 
India to puffer from v/ar phyco-si , I do feel 
that we have no option but to crea e—to 
cultivate    I should say—the spirit and will of 
resistance among the people of India, to   make 
them  aware of the fact that for the freedom of 
the country they will have 'o shed their    bloo-t    
a number    of times, and unless India is strong, 
India would not be able to make her con-
tribution even in preserving the peace of the 
world. I feel that the Government, instead of 
following    a weak-kneed policy, woul-i try to 
prepare the coun ry for the defence of the    
land under all circumstances. I am    glad, 
Madam, that in Ka hmir our military is giving 
a good account of itself and I am sure that this 
fact must    hav« enab'ed them to regain 
confidence in our own strength and perhaps 
also to the'r      military      leadership.      But 
all the same, I beg to submit    fral when the  
Government knew  everything—that there was 
preparation for gufrrlla  warfare,   that  there     
was preparation    for    intrus'on    of    the 
armed personnel into Kashmir—Government 
shows such a strategy that our forces were 
required to    defend Kashmir     on  the   
outskirts    of  Srinagar.    I feel  that  the 
Government must be bold enough not    onlv    
to re'use to have talks with Mr. Bhutto but  
also to say that Pakistan's    aggression  in  
Kashmir  further  clearly ind^ates  that  th°  
hones  which  led the Government of India to 
have this ag-eement  are    bel'ed.    What    
doei the Preamble of the Agreement say* It 
Miys'.-r- 

"That th's will also contribute to a 
reduction of tve pre^n* i*n± s<°on along 
the entire Indo-FaMe-tan border." 

On this presumption this agreement was 
arrived at This presumption fe falsified  by    
Pakistan    through , tyi 
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Hostile act vities in Kashmir and I feel that the 
Government of India •hould carefully 
reconsider its attitude with regard to this Indo-
Pakis-tan Agreement in the light of what 
hamened in August, 1965 in Kashmir, ani 
prepare the country for facing all pventualif es 
'or the defence of its dign ty and territorial 
integrity. 

1 P.M. 
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SHRI ANAND CHAND (Bihar): Madam 
Deputy Chairman, I might respectfully point 
out that some of us, I think, have transgressed 
from the immediate problem which is before 
this House, namely, the agreement with 
Pakistan regarding the cease-fire in Kutch and 
the establishment of a tribunal which is to deal 
ultimately with the problem <as to where the 
territory of India and Pakistan lies. That, to 
my mind, is the important point. I know that 
the happenings in Kashmir, the inflow of 
infiltrators there, the sabotage and other 
activities which are taking place there have 
clouded the minds of the Members and there 
has been a vociferous cry from inside the 
House as well as from the people at large that 
retaliatory measures should be taken. One of 
such measures is suggested to be the abroga-
tion of the Kutch agreement. I personally 
would respectfully submit to the House that 
we should not be carried away by this 
excitement. Rather we should focus our 
attention on the problem as it existed, when 
Pakistan made its incursions into the Kutch 
territory. Let us separate the problem of 
Kashmir altogether. I am glad the Prime 
Minister when he moved the Mo'.ion this 
morning was at pains to explain to us all here 
that 

the Kashmir problem as such is one wnich has 
no connection with the Kutch Agreement, 
neither is there any proposal before the 
Government nor there ever is going to be in 
the future some kind of an agreement on the 
boundaries or borders of Kashmir as is 
envisaged in the Kutch Agreement. Therefore 
once we isolate this from the happenings at 
Kashmir at present, I think we will be able to 
apply our minds much more clearly without 
bias to the contents of the Agreement itself. I 
was rather concerned when my friend Mr. 
Vajpayee from there raised two objections in 
the very beginning, constitutional objections, 
he called them. One was that the Government 
was not competent to enter into any agreement 
which ceded any part of the territory of India 
to another Government without the consent of 
the people of the Stateout concerned. Now if 
we examine article 1 very carefully, it 
establishes the territories of the Union. It says 
quite clearly that India is a Union which shall 
consist of States and Territories. Now those 
territories are defined in the First Schedule. In 
that Schedule we see the State of Gujarat. 
Now the boundaries of Gujarat are the 
boundaries which came into being with the 
passage of the Bombay Reorganisation Act in 
1960. If we go into the provisions of this Act, 
we will see that besides other areas or districts 
of the then existing Bombay State which was a 
composite State consisting both of 
Maharashtra and Gujarat, there was the district 
of Kutch. Kutch, at that time, was a part of the 
larger Bombay State. What has happened? 
That Kutch district has now gone under the 
Bombay State Reorganisation Act into the 
Gujarat State but what does it say? It says that 
the boundaries of the State shall be those 
which were the boundaries of Gujarat. There is 
no quetion that Kutch forms nart of Gujarat. 
That is not the issue. The issue is what are the 
territorial linrts of Gujarat ois-a-'Viv the Rann 
of Kutch. That is the point at issue. But the 
determining of that point whether the Rann of 
Kutch as a whole 



765                 Motion re Indo-Pakistan [ 19 AUG. 1965 ] Agreement of June 1965      766 

or a part is a part of Kutch and therefore of the 
State of Gujarat is one of the things which this 
Agreement aims to bring about. Therefore I 
respectfully submit that there is nothing in this 
Agreement which in any way abrogates or 
does not take into considerations the 
provisions of the Constitution. It is perfectly 
in consonance with the Constitution. The 
Centre has got the right to discuss with 
Pakistan what are the boundaries of the dis-
trict of Kutch, how much of the Rann is to be 
included. Of cour e our contention is that the 
whole of Rann is part of Kutch. Their 
contention is otherwise but the very fact that 
we are discussing does not mean that the 
jurisdicion or territorial limits of Gujarat are 
in any way being unilaterally altered. That is 
all that I would respectfully submit. 

Coming to the dispute proper, ever since 
Independence and even before the State of 
Kutch has had its s'ra-tegic importance, it was 
realised at the time when Sardar Patel brought 
about the United States of Kathiawad, the 
Union of what we call Saurash-tra, at that time 
Kutch, although part of the Western States 
Agency, was kept outside the orbit of this 
Union of Saurashtra and it was taken over as a 
separate Chief Commissioner's Province. 
Public memory h proverbially short but I 
would like, with your permission, to read out 
a few lines from para 118 of the White Paper 
on the Indian States which was issued 
sometime in the beginning of 1950. 
Para 188 of \he White Paper says: 

"Another important State which was taken 
over under the Central Administration was 
Kutch. This State has an area of 17,249 square 
. miles, of-which 8.461 miles is inhabited by a 
population of a little over half a million. The 
remaining area is occupied by what is known 
as the Rann of Kutch which is a wasteland 
flooded wi ;h water during most part of the 
year." 
Even in 1953 we were clear that so far as the 
Rsmn was concerned, it  was 

part of the Kutch State and when Kutch 
became integrated with India* not only the 
Kutch State proper but the Rann itself came 
under the jurisdiction of the Indian 
Government and has been administered as 
such. 

Now comes the point as to why then should 
this dispute at all have arisen. On that if 
Members will go back into the past a little, 
they will find that ever since 1948, Pakistan 
has been contesting. It has put forward 
continuously the assumptions or assertions 
that the Rann of Ku;ch is not wholly Indian 
territory. It was done first in 1948, in a note 
which was sent by the Pakistan High 
Commissioner to the Indian High 
Commission and thereafter right up to 1958 
there have been exchanges between our 
External Affairs Ministry and the Government 
of Pakistan regarding" the dispute in Kutch, so 
much so, that when the meeting of the 
representatives of the two States took place in 
1960, Kutch was discussed and it was agreed 
that a study would be made as to where the 
border lay and later on the Conference would 
take place. Now let us skip from 1960. In 
1965 Pakistan launched this unprovoked 
attack on Indian positions in the Rann of Kut 
h. That is history but at the same time when 
we were meeting the challenge which was 
posed by Pakistan in that area, the Prime 
Minister made a statement in Parliament on 
28th April 1965 which of course is known to 
all of us but I would like, with your 
permission, to quote a f">w lines from that. In 
his speech the Prime Minister said: 

"Pakistan must give up its warlike 
activities. If it does, I see no reason whv the 
simple fact of determining what was the 
actual boundary between the erstwhil? 
province of Sind and the State of Kutch and 
what is the boundary between India and 
Pakistan cannot be settled across the table." 

That is the policv statement which was made 
by the Head of the Government and that is a 
policy statement about whi'h I believe no 
objection at that time was raised from either 
side 
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of the House, whether it was from this Bids or 
from the side of the Opposition. Now this 
Agreement is    entirely    in consonance with 
that     policy.     That policy is that there was 
no reason why if Pakistan left its aggressive 
intentions, the question could not be    dis-
cussed across the table.    Well,    Pakistan has 
gone back.    As the    Prime Minister was at 
pains to tell us   this morning, the whole of the 
Rann   has been evaluated.    We have gone 
back to our posts except for a small area which 
they were patrolling.   The position taken by 
the Prima Minister and the Government that 
the stuus    quo ante as it existed on 1st 
January 1965 must be brought about before 
there is a cessation of hostilities and    further 
ta ks—that has been fully satisfied. No one has 
questioned this that   Pakistan has reverted 
back to where she was on 1st January  1965.     
Now that    being the   position,   the   other  
things   automatically follow and I see no 
reason why we  are raising such a hue  and ,cry 
and saying that this    Agreement itself is a 
surrender of sovereignty or that we are giving 
away    something which we have no right to 
do. All that is being done is that Pakistan 
having reverted back to its pos:tion     that   it 
occupied previous to 1st January 1965, India, 
as it had declared repeatedly, is honour-bound 
now to go ahead and to find out the avenues of 
sitting across the table ard trying to find out    
the determination of the boundary.    Now 
there has been a lot of criicism that there has to 
be this determination and demarcation      If  I     
remember     the w^rds arigV:, much emphases 
has beer, pla-ed  on  these  words.     They     
say that the Agreement has been    mode for  
determination   and     demarcation of the  
border  in  that  area.     I    respectfully submit 
that there can be no demarcation   without      
determination. Unless we linow where the 
boundary lies,   we   cannot   d°termine  it.     
Now the  question  is  that  from  our point of 
view it lias been made crnite clear that the 
boundary is as it was at the time wh°n partit'on 
took place,       and that the Indian side of the 
border was 

wherever the Kutch boundary in the Rann 
existed at that time. But Pakistan does not 
accept t.iis proposition. So all that nas to be 
done is that the boundary has to be 
determined first and then demarcated on the 
ground. 

Now   another  flaw  that  has     been pointed 
out in this Agreement is that Pakistan's cairn of 
3,500 square miles of Indian territory has been   
accepted. I do    not    think    so.    If    we    
read Article  3,  very clear'y it says     that 
"India  claims  that there is no territorial dispulo 
as there is a well established   boundary     
running      roughly along"  such     and  su h,     
and     that "Pakistan ci,iims that the border bet-
ween   India   and   Pakistan * * * runs roughly 
alct,g" such and such.    Well, it  only  saj j,  a  
factual  position,   that India says  tiiat our 
boundary is at a particular point,  and Pakistan    
says, "No, this ij wrong; the boundary of 
Pakistan  or  that  of the province  of Sini is at 
such and    such a     po:nt." Therefore,  all  
these questions having arisen, there is this 
Agreement to find out where the actual 
boundary lies. So *here has to be a demarcation 
of that boundarv   only—T  submit—after     the 
determination as to where it is. 

Now the othe" point that was made was the 
objection raised to this portion in the 
Agreement "for drtermi-nation of the border in 
the light of their respective claims and 
evidence Drodu ed before it" (the Tribunal). 
Now those are words which are usually used in 
all these matters, where there are territorial 
disputes, T mean when two parties fall out and 
they apnoint arbitrators, or they refer them to a 
court of arbitration. Then, naturally, the claims 
of both sides as well as the evidence which 
they have to lead has to be placed there, before 
the tribunal itself. It is not a judicial 
proceeding, but it is a kind of quasi-judicial 
bodv, and therefore it has to be given both 
sides of the p'ctu-e. and when they come to a 
conclusion t'->en, naturally, they will (rive the 
H°"ision as to where actually the boundary 
lies. Of course,' India hopes and we all hope 
that our case 
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as such is water-tight, and that Pak-  | istan has 
no claims whatsoever in the Eann of Kutch, and 
by history,    by maps,  by tradition,  by     our     
actual possession of the territory, there is no 
reason  to believe that we are going to lose that 
territory.    Let us not be unduly excited about 
an    imaginary possibility that -we are going to 
lose this   territory   and   something   should be 
done to stop it straightway.    That way  an  
impression,  I  may     submit, would be created 
in the mind of the Tribunal  itself,   that  our   
case     was weak and so we were worried,    
that Parliament was   very murh    worried that 
they might take away all      this 3,500 square 
miles of territory.  So I do not want that kind    
of    defeatist mentality to prevail.   Why should 
we be afraid?   If our case is just, if   our maps 
are right, if our boundary line is  correctly  
drawn—I have no doubt it is—I have consulted 
many records my-«elf in the past few days—I 
see      no reason why we should object to or in 
any way hesitate in referring it to an 
international body. 

That brings me to the last point—I do not 
want to take more time of the House—and it 
is this. Now there is going to be no meeting 
of the Foreign Ministers of Pakistan and 
India. 

I   might  be  pardoned;   there     are very  
many  senior Members in     this House; my 
knowledge     about    war strategy and 
political acumen   is very limited but I 
personally would have thought,  in the 
context in which we are seeing this Kutch 
Agreement, when Government is so clear in 
its mind that the happenings in Kashmir have 
nothing to do  insofar    as    the    Kutch 
Agreement itself is concerned, I     for one 
was rather distressed to find that there was 
not going to be a meeting of the two Foreign      
Ministers, i would have thought that, when 
we had come to an Agreement then whatever 
flows from   that   Agreement,     we      might 
follow.   I am sure Pakistan, by sending  its  
Foreign     Minister to    India, would  not 
have budged     one     inch from their  stand 
that the     territory whi'.h they claim theirs 
is—up to the 24th Parallel.    I admit all that    
but, 

at the same time, if they had said so once again, 
I do not think    it would have injured our 
cause.   Of course so far as the sentiments of 
the   country were concerned, they would be    
still more injured because of the mistake of the 
Minister of Pakistan himsalf hi saying what he 
said—I was    rather sorry to read  that.     He  
said somewhere,   in  relation   to  Kashmir,   
that although Pakistan was not interested, or 
was not involved  in  the     people who were 
going and infiltrating into Kashmir and causing 
all this trouble, still Pakistan had a lot of 
sympathy for oppressed people everywhere.     I 
do not like to bring in that issue here, and I 
believe, in a way, perhaps    it serves him right 
to be told—for his attitude about Kashmir—
that perhaps it is best that he does not come to 
the conference table here and the dispute as 
such goes directly to the Tribunal. 

Now one word about the Tribunal, and I 
would submit that we have to be very careful 
on whom we put the burden of representing 
India's    case in the Tribunal itself.   I think 
that is a point which must be very carefully 
thought out.    I do not know    what Pakistan's 
attitude might    be.    After the British 
Government had come in as a    mediator    
between    Pakistan and India, there was 
criticism of the British  Prime Minister  and  
of     the British people, that they sided    with 
Pakistan and that therefore they have done 
this, it is their draft, and so on. Well, in a way 
it might be true—I do not know—but if we 
look to the other side, we will be quite clear, 
and let us  be  quite clear in our mind  that 
Britain, in spite of its position now— the 
position it   occupies in the world now is not 
the position which it held once; it had empires 
and so on—still, is the senior partner of the 
Commonwealth, a Commonwealth of which 
we are a member still, and as such,    if Mr. 
Harold Wilson, as a senior member of the 
Commonwealth Prime Ministers'  entity,   if  
he  sent  a proposal, there was nothing wrong,    
and    we should not say that we won't touch 
it, because it emanated from the British* 
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[Shri Anand Chand.] 
Now I do not know, Madam Deputy 

•Chairman, as to whom Pakistan would select 
as their referee on the Tribunal, but if I am to 
be allowed to    make a  suggestion,  my  
suggestion to     the Government would be that 
we should •very  seriously   consider   as  to     
who should be our nominee on the Tribunal, 
and I hope I am not transgressing my limits if I 
would suggest two names, and the first name 
that comes to my mind automatically is the 
name of  the    Union    of    Soviet    Socialist 
Republics.    I think we should ask   if they 
would be interested in sponsoring our cause  in 
this  particular dispute.     The Prime  Minister 
has been there recently; the Soviet stand    has 
been that they stand for an amicable settlement  
of the     dispute    between India and Pakistan 
in the Kutch area. I do not see why, if they are 
so   interested, they would not agree if we ask 
them  to be  one  of  the  referees from  our 
side.     And  if for    certain reasons      the     
Soviet      Union      is not  prepared  to  come  
and  act,   then I  would  turn   my  eye  
inwards  into the   Commonwealth   countries   
themselves.  Of    course  there   are    coun-
tries in Africa with whom we     have very 
close relations.   There are countries  
elsewhere  also,  but my    mind wanders  and 
it  goes  to Canada;    I would  suggest  the   
name  of  Canada for two reasons; one, that 
Canada is not so deeply involved in the Euro-
pean and Asian troubles, in all   the 
conflagrations here,   as  other    countries of 
the Commonwealth are; two, that it has been 
working with us     in Vietnam and we have 
close association  insofar  as  the  Vietnam  
trouble is   concerned,   and   the   approach    
of the  Government  of  India    and    the 
Canadian Government on the bombing in 
North Vietnam has been identical.    So, 
Madam Deputy Chairman, if for some reason 
or the other, we are not able to persuade the 
U.S.S.R. to come to our side in this particular 
Tribunal, I would suggest that       we ask 
Canada to be the sponsor insofar as our case 
before  the  Tribunal    is concerned. 

This  is   all  I have  to  say.    Thank you. 

 
•'With hope and faith, this House affirms 

the firm resolve of the Indian people to 
drive out the aggressor from the sacred soil 
of India." 

 
"There is no question of sur-rending any 

part of our territory not an inch of it" 

 
"We will not succumb to pressure. There 

is no question of succumbing to any force, 
to any aggression and there l can be no 
question of our surrendering even an inch of 
our sacred soil anywhere else." 
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SHRI G. S. PATHAK (Uttar Pradesh): 
Madam Deputy Chairman, I share the feelings 
of anger expressed by the Members of this 
House at the abominable conduct and 
behaviour of Pakistan, but it is on occasions 
like this that it is necessary that we should 
judge the matters before us with a little cool 
thinking. Madam, there are two questions 
before us. One is whether the Government 
acted rightly in entering into the Kutch Agree-
ment and the other is whether it would be 
proper to revoke that Agreement at this stage. 
Now, this Kutch Agreement cannot be 
considered in isolation. It has got a history. It 
is a sequel to something which had gone 
before it. The partition which took place in 
1947 brought about a number of border 
disputes and the circumstances in which this 
partition took place made them inevitable. 
They started or their disposal or settlement 
started with the Bagge Commission. There 
was the Berubari Agreement. Then, there was 
the Agreement of 1959. According to the 
language used by Pakistan itself that is a 
border agreement.   It is an agree- 
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ment not for the settlement of territorial 
disputes, but for the settlement of boundary 
disputes. The word "border' is there. Then, we 
have got the agreement of 1960. In that agree-
ment Pakistan uses the word 'boundary' and 
that agreement specifically refers to the 
border dispute in Kutch. The Agreement with 
which we are concerned today is the 
agreement which is a sequel to tnese prior 
agreements and it cannot be considered in 
isolation. And, therefore, the question that 
one has to consider is whether there was any 
territorial dispute involved. If the question 
arises before the Tribunal and Pakistan ever 
says that a territorial dispute is involved and 
that they are entitled to a certain territory, the 
answer would be that in 1959 Pakistan had 
said that it was a boundary dispute, that in 
1960 Pakistan again said it was a boundary 
dispute. In the present Agreement Pakistan 
says three or four times that it is a border 
dispute and no one will listen to Pakistan if 
Pakistan ever says that they want to claim the 
territory of Gujarat State. All that will happen 
is: Where doea the boundary lie, where does 
the border stand? That is why the word 
'alignment' was used today and it was not 
used for the first time. I may tell my hon. 
friend, Mr. Patel, that it was used in their 
correspondence by Pakistan itself before this 
Agree ment was entered into. Therefore, we 
are concerned solely with the question as to 
where did the border lie an<* that entirely 
depends upon the question: Where was the 
border when there was a border between the 
British territory and the territory of the Ruler 
of Kutch State? That woulr" be the question 
and that is going to be the sole question. It 
will not be open to the Tribunal to go into 
an*" other question and to treat it as if the 
Tribunal were deciding that the Rann of 
Kutch belongs to Pakistan. The sole question 
will be what was the border between British 
India and the State of Kut:h. That will be the 
sole question. Therefore, to treat this I matter 
as if it is a matter involving   I 

some territorial' dispute is entirely an 
erroneous approach. 

SHRI DAHYABHAI V. PATEL; I was 
quoting from the agreement. The word in the 
agreement is not alignment.    Determination 
is the word. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Determination and 
demarcation. 

SHRI DAHYABHAI V. PATEL: Not 
alignment. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Alignment means 
nothing but fixing the line. That is alignment. 
Well, I have got a short time. So we could not 
give up our policy of settlement of disputes by 
peaceful means. We are wedded to this policy. 
How can we advocate and preach this policy 
at the United Nations and everywhere and yet, 
when there is a dispute of border, we should 
say we shall have war? We never had war on 
border disputes and every endeavour was 
made by us to have our border disputes settled 
by negotiation or by arbitration. This has been 
the history of border disputes here. 

Madam, we cannot forget the practice of 
nations. We are a nation which has to 
recognise what international practice is. It 
must be known to everybody that in the 19th 
century this practice grew up, and it is being 
maintained up till today in international 
affairs, that is, wherever there is a border 
dispute it must be decided by negotiation or 
by agreement and in case agreement is not 
possible then by arbitration. I could quote 
many instances of such agreements and such 
arbitrations. That has been the iner-national 
practice. Can India behave in a manner which 
makes it a unique country, a singular instance 
of a country which will fight a war while all 
the other nations of the world will have the 
matter decided by arbitration or by 
agreement? We cannot do this. We cannot act 
contrary t° the international practice. 
Therefore, it is necessary for us in every such 
case to adhere to the international practice and 
to have our border disputes decided according 
to that practice. 
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[Shri G. S. Pathak.] There is not sufficient 
time for me to go into the question whether 
having regard to the situation as it existed in 
June 1965 this agreement was a proper 
agreement, i.e. whether the Government was 
right in arriving it the judgment that this 
agreement should be entered into. Today in the 
speech of Mr. Vajpayee and in the spee-h of 
Prof. M. B. Lai emphasis has been laid on how 
did we agr_e to withdraw our military force.;, 
how did we agrea to allow a patrol. We did not 
agree to have this on a permanent basis. 
Whenever there is an agreement of reference 
to arbitration, the parties in order to arrive at a 
peaceful settlement agree for 3 temporary 
period to a certain situation. Supposing the 
tribunal without any evidence, as my 
distinguished friend, Mr. Vajpayee, -aid, 
without any evidence decides it, it will be 
open to us to say that we never contemplated 
tint they would decide without any evidence, 
and such an award would not be binding on us. 

SHRI ATAL BTHARI VAJPAYEE: On 
any ground you cannot challenge their 
verdict. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: It is not so. There 
should bs valid grounds. It does not -mean that 
arbitrarily they could say that thh territory 
belongs to Pakistan without looking into evi-
dence. You will find in the context of the 
agreements that evidences have to be looked 
into. Therefore, such a situation can never 
arise. If any arbitrator or any tribunal without 
looking into any evidence arrives at an 
arbitrary decision, such a decision will not be 
binding on India. Further, we mu.;t not mix up 
this question of the Kutch border with the 
question of Kashmir. There is in international 
practice a very clear distinction drawn 
between cases where the question is merely 
whit is the line which 13 the border between 
two States and a ca.e where sivereignty is 
involved. The principle is that where there is 
sovereignty   involved   and    somebody 

claims a particular territory as belonging to 
that party without any question of where the 
border lies, then the international practice is 
that such a matter wi.l not be referred to arbi-
tration. There is no que tion of border dispute 
so far as the Kashmir question is concerned. 
They are attacking our sovereignty. They have 
got no sovereignty themselvei, they have got 
no claim what^evei themselves. We cannot 
enter into any arbitration or agreement with 
»egard to Kashmir. That is international law, 
that is international practice. No nation has 
entered into an arbitration agreement in cases 
where sovereignty is involved and there is no 
border dispute, and we adhered t° that prac-
tice, and that is why other nations have not 
been able to say that we are wrong in not 
entering into an agreement of arbitration with 
referen;v 10 Kashmir. Therefore, it has been 
our policy to draw this distinction bet-Ween 
Kashmir and border disputes. We must adhere 
to thLs policy. To mix up the two would be 
running contrary to this policy and to weaken 
our case unnecessarily where our sovereignty 
is involved. We must keep them separate. 

I will at once come to the othe» irntter, 
namely, whe'her it is proper to revoke it. Mr. 
Vajpayee has drawn a picture of this 
agreement as if we have permanently decided 
that our forcrs shall not go there, as if, if this 
agreement is viloated by Pakistan, our forces 
have no right to go there. There is no question 
of any right belonging to our forces or 
belonging to us in this agreement. It is merely 
a temporary phase. We have the right to send 
our forces into our territory. At the time of the 
agreement when we agreed to refer it to a 
tribunal, we could not finally decide wher? the 
Tne lay. Therefore, temporarily we agreed to 
that thing. Not that we have no right to send 
our forces but until the tribunal dee'des the 
matter we shall not send our forces. To say 
that we shall not send our forces is not to say 
that we have no right to   send    our 
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forces. Similarly with regard to patrol in the 
small area. When an agreement is entered 
into, you do so because you cannot judge 
where the line is to be drawn. Then what is 
the use of sending it to the tribunal? If the 
other party is accepting your decision, then 
there is no question of going to the tribunal. 
Therefore, the fallacy, if I may say so, 
underlying the whole argument of Mr. 
Vajpayee is that he thinks that at the time 
when an agreement is entered into whatever is 
then decided is the final decision. Therefore, 
this picture that he has drawn is rather 
misleading and I think that at the present mo-
ment there is no justification whatsoever for 
revoking this agreement, no justification in 
international law and practice. 

Prof. M. B. Lai referred to the Kusso-
German agreement during the war period. 
That is a very different kind of agreement, 
agreement of friendship. 

PROF. M. B- LAL: May I know from the   
learned  jurist  whether   there   is . not  a  
similarity  between  the  agreements  of  1959    
and    1960    and    the Russo-German pact? 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: I will accept from 
you the contents of that agreement if you 
have read it. 

PROF. M. B. LAL: Which agreement? 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: The Russo-German 
Agreement. I say, there is no similarity .  .  . 

PROF. M. B. LAL:    Why? 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Because there was no 
question of any border dispute being decided 
between Germany and Russia at that time. I 
am speaking from recollection. I can bring 
that treaty. 

PROF. M. B. LAL: But the question .   .   . 

SHRI A. D. MANI: Here it fe a question of 
fact. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: I will tell yo* what the 
position is. A non-aggression agreement is 
very different from a border agreement. The 
law in international practice on this point is 
this. If a term of the treaty is violated by a 
party to the treaty, i* does not become null 
and void automatically. It is open to the other 
party to cancel it and give notice «f 
cancellation. 

PROF. M. B. LAL: That is what ray 
contention was. I am giving a declaration to 
the effect .  .  . 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Kindly hear from me 
more. There has been »o war technically 
between us and Pakistan. War itself does not 
automatically annual all treaties. Treaties of 
alliance, treaties of friendship may be 
annulled. A border treaty like this has never 
been known to have been annulled even when 
the parties are at war. If you want, I will give 
you references from the books on it. 
Therefore, it is entirely a wrong supposition. 
There was a breach of faith on the part of 
Pakistan—but not with regard to this treaty—
you cannot say that any term of this treaty has 
been violated by Pakistan. 

THE ATAL BIHART VttPAYEE: The 
Premble. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK; The preamble is not a 
term and the Preamble says "all borders 
between India and Pakistan." The cease-fire 
line is not a border between India and 
Pakistan. The border is on the other side of 
the cease-fire line; on the side of Pakistan, 
that is the border. It does not say 'cease-fire 
line'; it says 'border'. And if they violate tie 
cease-fire line, that is not the border, even if 
you treat the Preamble as a term. Therefore, 
before the international world we could not 
say that if the Preamble was violated by 
Pakistan, any term of it was violated. How is 
it possible for us then to saf that we have got a 
right to terminate this treaty?    We have got   
to    take 

543 RS—7. 
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[Shri G.  S. Pathak.] 
into account the world community; we have 
also to take into account what other people 
will think about our conduct, knowing what 
our policies have been. Therefore, there is 
absolutely no justification for saying that we 
are entitled to treat this treaty as revoked or 
cancelled on the ground of violation of any 
term of this treaty by Pakistan. So far as war 
is concerned there is no declared war between 
us and Pakistan. But even if there were a war, 
the law and practice is not that a war cancels 
all treaties. There may be some kinds of 
treaties like treaties of alliance and treaties of 
friendship. They would be cancelled, other 
treaties are not cancelled. 

Therefore, this argument which has been 
advanced is not tenable at all, and we cannot 
and we shall not be justified in revoking this 
agreement. Then our conduct will be 
inconsistent with international law and 
practice and it will be inconsisten with the 
position we have taken with regard to 
Kashmir. 

Now, there is the question of honour 
involved. Will not our position in the 
international world become weak if, without 
pointing out which clause or which term of the 
treaty has been violated by Pakistan, we say 
that we shall have it annulled? And I submit 
that this is not wise either to divert our ' 
energies from places where they require to be 
concentrated. Those who think of revoking 
treaties must also think not only Of something 
which may appeal to you in a fit Of emotion, 
but also whether such a thing is proper in the 
entire circumstances with which we are faced. 

Now, Madam, the object of the attack on the 
Kutch area was frustrated by entering into this 
treaty. This treaty secured a position which   | 

we might have secured by expelling the 
attacker because the attacker agreed to 
withdraw his forces from that area, of course, 
subject to the decision of the Tribunal. 1 am 
not saying that the attacker's rights are not 
subject to the decision of the Tribunal but 
when you refer a matter to a Tribunal, you 
have got to accept that position namely, that 
whatever the Tribunal decides on the 
evidence, that will be binding on us. But what 
is the subject-matter of enquiry will be merely 
this, where is the line to be drawn having 
regard to the line which existed during the 
British period between the British territory of 
Sind and the Ruler of Kutch?    Nothing else. 

Now, Madam, there is just one-more 
submission which I have to make. The 
situation today is that atrocities are being 
committed by Pakistan in Kashmir as were 
done in the year 1947. Reference has been 
made to infiltration and other thi by the 
speakers who have gone before me. The cease-
fire line is a continuous firing line and there is 
violation of international law. There is crime 
committed by Pakistan in Kashmir when you 
consider what Pakistan has done and is doing, 
and we have got to consider one thing and that 
is this. You do not have decisions by 
international bodies—not like the Tribunal on 
Kutch—like the Security Council—on the 
merits of the problem; their interests colour the 
decisions and it does appear—if you have 
regard to the various resolutions passed by the 
Security Council not only with regard to 
Kashmir but also with regard to other mat-
ters—that they recognise aggression when, 
they like and they just overlook aggression at 
other places. This is a most dangerous phase 
which may be extremely harmful to the United 
Nations. The United Nations is really on trial 
in this matter. Ar some-places they would say 
that there is aggression; at other places they 
would    just overlook   the aggression.. 



797                Motion re Indo-Pakistan [ 19 AUG. 1965 ] Agreement of June 1965    798 

SHRI A. D. MANI: They have never 
defined aggression. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Aggression is 
undefined. You do not define the beauty of a 
woman. 

Madam, I am sorry I have to .   .   . 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: i did not hear 
it because you turned round and said it. 

PROF. M. B. LAL: No notice will be taken 
of these words. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Madam, we have got 
to face the situation. We must meet Pakistani 
propaganda. I am addressing the Government 
now and also addressing the other Members 
of the House. We are apt to believe in the 
justress of the cause; we forget that other 
nations are motivated by their own interests 
and by considerations other than the merits of 
the case. Therefore, it is necessary that we 
should activate our publicity and we should 
do something more in this respect so that the 
people of the world may know how Pakistan 
has been behaving and Pakistan must be 
exposed. 

Now, unity inside is important and on this 
appeal has already been made. I am not adding 
anything to that. I am submitting that it is 
necessary for us to strengthen, the hands of 
our Army. Madam our Army has given a very 
good account of itself. It is a very brave Army. 
It is a very strong Army and we can give 
strength to our Army only if we sink our 
differences inside and unite on a national 
matter like this and do not allow controversial 
matters to arise or to deflect the energies of the 
Government and of these who want to work in 
order to secure the safety of the people. 

Madam, just one word more before I sit 
down. Prof Mukat Behari Lai mentioned the      
name    of     Mahatma 

Gandhi. I agree with him that Mahatma , 
Gandhi's non-tviolence never meant that in 
case there wa3 an attack on your honour, there 
was an attack on your territory, you should be 
non-violent. So far as my reading of Mahatma 
Gandhi's writings is concerned that was his 
view. I am definite that he once said: "Our 
young people do not deserve to live if they 
cannot save the honour of their womenfolk 
and of their country". 

SHRI P. N. SAPRU (Uttar Pradesh): Very 
difficult to interpret Gandhiji. 

SHRI G. S. PATHAK: Therefore, those who 
preach non-violence against Pakistan when 
Pakistan wants to destroy our sovereignty, I 
submit, they are not doing the correct thing. 

So far as attack or counter-attack or 
retaliation—these expressions are used—is 
concerned, I agree that we have got a right in 
law to self-defence and, in the exercise of that 
right, we are entitled to destroy the bases and 
the installations of Pakistan. But how to judge 
from which base these intruders or their 
armies come? We must remember that the 
judge of when and to what extent this right 
has to be exercised would be the operational 
military. We cannot take a decision here that 
somebody should go there. We must leave it 
to our Generals who have their dialogues with 
other Generals. 

PROP. M. B. LAL: I have no objection. 

SHRI G. RAMACHANDRAN (Nominated) 
: Madam, this is a democracy in which we live 
in India. The ruling party claims—and may 
be, rightly—that they are running a democracy 
in this country. If that is so, the role of the 
Opposition is of tremendous importance in a 
democracy. You have had stated on the floor 
of the House most emphatically the 
Government version of this Kutch 
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[Shri G. Ramachandran.] Agreement No 
one could have spoken with greater clarity, 
humility, and emphasis at the same time than 
the Prime Minister. It was good to listen to 
him because while he was speaking, bis voice 
was not strident, but his mind was firm on 
basic principles. It is equally good that we 
heard the Opposition. One listened to my 
friend, Mr. Vajpayee, sharing the emotion that 
so deeply moved him, and I could see from the 
faces of the Government Members that they 
too shared that emotion. It is not a question 
that the Congress people who are running the 
Government alone are the patriots and those 
who points out certain flaws in this agreement 
are the enemies of the country. I hope there is 
no such idea anywhere. Thi» Government and 
the Opposition are equally united together in 
the defence of this country and in the 
maintenance of the honour and the integrity of 
the nation. Personally, taking into 
consideration all the circumstances that then 
obtained, I think the Kutch agreement is an ex-
celent agreement. You cannot have an 
agreement unrelated to circumstances. If you 
had asked Mr. Shas-tri or Shri Swaran Singh 
to sit down and draw up an ideal agreement, I 
have no doubt that they would have drawn up 
an ideal agreement, but that would not be 
related to the circumstances. But even after I 
have said that it is a good agreement under the 
circumstances, I am not sure that the 
Government of India have taken care of every 
word in that agreement and every comma and 
full-stop in it: Some masterly hand has drafted 
the agreement, and I share with my friend, Mr. 
Vajpayee, the inquisitiveness to fund out 
where this was drafted. I suppose that  will  
remain a  mystery. 

When I compare, Madam, what happened 
over this Kutch business and the sequence of 
events which overtook us over the incident 
with China, I think this time we reacted       
more 

quickly, more vigilantly than -we did. over the 
Chinese incident. We took no time to 
recognise what was happening and we reacted 
to it vigorou*-ly. There was even the story 
that the Government of India—I do not know 
how much it is correct—was thinking of 
opening a second front somewhere else if 
aggression in Kutch was not vacated. We 
reacted quite quickly and vigorously. We 
yielded nothing as the negotiations went on as 
one could see. I do not know if anybody tried 
to pressurise us because all these are secrets to 
which a common man on the floor of this 
House can get no access. But one does not see 
the sign of any pressure in the document ex-
cept that somebody has drafted it so cleverly 
that one or two things seen to have escaped 
the careful attention of the Government of 
India. 

Madam, what is the line of attack of the 
Opposition on this Kutch Agreement? Let us 
study that carefully. Let us be tolerant of this 
criticism, and see with sympathy _ what is in 
the minds of our fellow Members who took 
upon this Agreement with a little suspicion. 
Firstly we have allowed the Pak police to 
patrol a certain road .   .   . 

SHRI A. D. MANI: That is the newspaper  
quotation. 

SHRI G. RAMACHANDRAN: . . . , and we 
are told that this does not mean any 
infringement of sovereignty. My friend here 
who interprets sovereignty in all the fine 
nuances in which he is a specialist feels that 
even if over a number of miles of Indian 
territory the Pak police can now travel to reach 
from one post to another of their posts, there is 
no infringement of sovereignty. But surely 
there is a certain weakness attacking to this 
concession and I do not want the Government 
to run away from admitting this weakness, this 
concesion which has been made.    It disturbs 
the people. 

SHRI P. N. SAPRU: There is a delusion of 
sovereignty 
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SHRI G.  RAMACHANDRAN;     We i have 
also limited our own patrols in our own 
patrols in our    own    area. This    is    even    
more    serious    that we    allowed    in   this      
Agreeement that in regard to territory 
indisputably ours, we accepted certain limita-
tions of patrolling—another weak concession 
we have made in this Agreement. We talked 
about the status quo ante and I remember how 
often   the Prime Minister came back to this 
expression status quo ante.       It almost 
became a joke.   Now this status quo ante has 
become a double-edged monster which has 
caught us by the tail at the other end.   We 
now discover that on the date which is 
mentioned    in reference to the status quo 
ante Pakistan had done something and we are 
now called upon to accept that something as 
part of the status quo.   Now all these are 
weaknesses, are concessions, which we have 
made.    Then we agreed there would be three 
foreigners in the Tribunal, there would be no 
Indian or Pakistani.   That is a very reasonable  
thing.   Otherwise as     the Prime Minister 
said, there will be two lawyers arguing against   
each    other and there would be only one man 
finally deciding the    issues.   Supposing my 
friend, Mr. Vajpayee represented India and    
Mr.    Bhutto    represented Pakistan, you can 
imagine what would happen at that meeting.   
In a    few minutes, words would be giving 
place to fists. I suppose.    So it is good that 
not an Indian and not a    Pakistani would be 
there and the third     who would be selected 
by both would also be a foreigner. If you want 
arbitration there is no other way of getting an 
arbitration. 

SHRI A. D. MANI: Would you suggest 
the same for the Himalayan border also? 

SHRI G. RAMACHANDRAN: You ot 
going to draw me across with a red herring 
like that. You leave me to develop my own 
case. I was saying that there are weaknesses 
in this settlement. There are the words 'det-
ermination of the border'. We could have 
avoided that and said 'delineating 

border' or 'demarcating the border* which 
would have been better. That is why I have a 
feeling that the Government of India did not 
take adequate care of the wording and in an 
Agreement, like this every word counts. We 
could have and should have taken greater care 
of the wording. What I would like the Govern-
ment to do now is to fairly and squarely admit 
that this is a compromise and a compromise 
means giving something and taking some-
thing. You cannot have a settlement of this 
kind avoiding the cataclysm of a war without 
giving something and taking something. 

SHRI A.  B.    VAJPAYEE;     Taking what? 

SHRI G. RAMACHANDRAN: I      am 
coming to that.   Taking what?    Yes, I will 
answer that challenge squarely. The Pakistani 
forces    had    occupied posts  inside  Indian  
territory.   Pakistan had brought up a lot of 
military paraphernalia to support their aggres-
sion.  They had to vacate.     That     is 'taking 
it'.    If anybody suggests that this Agreement is 
all surrender, may I say in all humility that that 
somebody would be talking nonsence?   We 
have made certain concessions   and the other 
party also has had to make concessions.   I 
have a notion that if somebody can go and do 
some     reasearch in Pakistan, he will find 
hundreds of people  there     raging     against     
this Agreement.     So we     gave and took. It is 
a good thing we did that    and avoided the 
catastrophe of a war. It is said that we must 
keep Kashmir apart from Kuteh.   I agree but I 
want to ask the     Government   the   question: 
'Have   you   yourseli  kept     Kashmir apart 
from this   Kutch business?'    If you did so  
and if you thought that Kashmir and Kutch 
were two separate issues why have you 
cancelled    the meeting of the two foreign 
Ministers? So in your own mind even while on 
the one hand you are saying that these two 
things are separate, you have not acted on that 
assumption. 

SHRI A. D. MANI:  It is on account of the 
Jana Sangh demonstration. 
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his weapons on the ground and in the 
air.    No such problem in this present 
time of ours is going to be solved on 
a military basis.   Occasionally a little 
military action saves a little situation 
here and there but when it comes to 
the question    of a    total war    bet 
ween two nations, then it never is go 
ing  to  be  solved  by military  action. 
There is no such thing as victory     or 
defeat possible for any power in the 
world in     1965     and     onwards. 
We must become civilised people, 
approaching these problems in a 
civilised way and the only civilised 
way     is       that       of negotation 
and arbitration. Somebody thinks that arbitration 
infringes sovereignty. There can be nothing more 
ridiculous than that idea. Arbitration is necessary 
more among sovereign nations than between 
anybody else because there is not yet a clear 
Inter-national Law nor its effective instruments. 
So we must sit together and talk together and if 
two heads do not get down to a peaceful 
arrangement we ask a third man to come and 
help. There is nothing derogatory in arbitration. 

Let me close by saying that there was a very 
serious situation in Kutch. The Shastri 
Government dealt with it firmly  and  with  
restraint,  combining firmness with restraint.   This 
is    the tradition we     inherit    from     Pandit 
Nehru.    When Pandit Nehru in    the past acted 
with similar restraint and firmness, the very people 
who are attacking the Government today attacked 
him. I can remember     the attacks of Mr. 
Vajpayee even then, on Pandit Nehru.    The same 
people now attack again but we must remain 
inflexible in our policy of firmness combined with 
restraint.   The Government have done well and 
they deserve the congratulations   of   this   House   
and   the   whole country.    But they must take 
care of every word in an agreement.    When a 
draft is made they must take care of every word 
and every comma and full stop. Otherwise they 
simply expose  themselves  to  attacks  from  the 
Opposition.   I   wish  the   Government and the 
Opposition well and    I think they have both done 
well. Thank you,  Madam. 

SHRI G. RAMACHANDRAN:    I do not 
think that the Jana Sangh    demonstration had 
anything to do with it.    It    was     a    grand    
demonstration    but    it    ha^  nothing    to    
do with      it.     But       let     me     come 
back   to      the     point.     You cannot keep 
these things separate.   There is something  
that  happened  in     Kutch from which you 
came out with    an Agreement but hardly was 
the    ink dry  on  it when something else hap-
pened somewhere and even the Government 
reacted to it by saying that the proposed 
meeting of the Ministers was cancelled.   Let 
me tell you I am not happy that this meeting 
of Ministers is cancelled. If I had my way,   I 
would have had this meeting of the Ministers.   
Let Mr. Bhutto come and let him raise the 
issue of Kashmir, if he wished.   We would 
not.   We would have dealt with the issue of 
the Kutch Agreement on its own and    
nothing else.    So I am not sure whether    in 
the mind of the Government itself the 
Kashmir infiltration and all that has since 
happened are not egging them on to other 
ways of thinking, to other ways of doing.   I 
should like that not to happen. 

Within  the  short  time  at  my  disposal I 
have only one or two things more to add.   I 
said on the whole this is a good Agreement.   
We have avoided a war.   The consequences of 
war are  inconceivable.   There   are  tin-pot 
Field  Marshals  among us  who think they can 
have a war as though   war today is a kind of 
big joke.   War today   is  a  terrible  thing.   It 
will  not be merely war between     India     and 
Pakistan.   A  conflict,   an  open     conflict 
and a total war between the two countries will, 
within no time, become a   world  war  and  the     
consequences would be terrible.   We must 
make   a peaceful approach to this problem.    I 
am glad one of the Members here emphasised 
the need for a peaceful and civilised approach 
to this problem.   In 1965   and  onwards,  you  
cannot  solve such   a   problem   by  military   
action. Even President Johnson, the    mighty 
man, the President of the U.S.A.    is finding 
that he cannot solve the problem of little South 
Viet Nam with all 
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SHRI K. V. RAGHUNATHA REDDY 
(Andhra Pradesh); Madam, irrespective of the 
niceties of the words used in the Agreement or 
in the language used in various letters of 
correspondence, the question that remains be-
fore this House is whether this House is going 
to accept the proposal of the Government to 
refer the question of Kutch to a Tribunal 
exercising powers of arbitration. The Tribunal 
has to consider what the border with Pakistan 
wasj in August 1947, when Kutch acceded to 
India. In short the Tribunal is to give a finding 
on this very limited question without 
extending its jurisdiction to any other 
collateral or external issues connected with it. 
Therefore, Madam, the question is asked why 
the Indian Government had chosen to refer 
this matter to the Tribunal in pursuance of this 
Agreement? If we do not refer this matter to 
the Tribunal, it amounts to abrogating the 
entire Agreement. Either we will have to 
abrogate the entire Agreement or we will have 
to pursue the logical consequences of all the 
terms that are found in this Agreement. That is 
the reason why the Government of India has 
come forward for the purpose of taking the 
approval of this House for referring this matter 
to the Tribunal. It had been the practice of 
Governments to come before the Parliament to 
have its approval for various issues like this. 
Then only the Government will get the power, 
and the world would recognise that a proper 
approach had been made in this regard, and 
then only the Tribunal also will get the proper 
jurisdiction to deal with the matter because, in 
the dynamics of international relations, 
approval of Parliament is necessary for the 
purpose of the exercise of the Tribunal's 
jurisdiction notwithstanding the fact that the 
two Governments might have entered into 
agreements. Madam Deputy Chairman, the 
question is often asked why the Indian 
Government is so cowardly that they have 
been resorting to this kind of diplomacy by 
conference and not diplomacy by compulsive 
reprisals. The Indian Government has been 
guided, Madam Deputy    Chairman,    by    
the 

interests of peace, by the policy that peace is 
indivisible, for an underdeveloped country 
like India peace is absolutely necessary for its 
economic development. As Mr, 
Ramachandran said, there can be any number 
of drum-beaters and breast-beaters in favour 
of war, but if war breaks out, the colossal 
consequences of war cannot be easily realised 
unless one experiences them. It is very easy to 
talk about war but very difficult to face the 
consequences. That is the reason, Madam, 
why had been the practice in the history of 
international relations to refer matters of this 
type to arbitration. This is not a case of 
adjudiction before a judicial tribunal but it is 
arbitration by the chosen, representatives of 
the Government of, say, two or three for the 
purpose of giving a finding of fact on a 
question that is placed before them. This has 
been the practice, Madam, from the time of 
the Hague Convention, and one would recall, 
any student of international relations would 
recall, that in 1903, when England and France 
entered into an agreement called the Anglo-
French Agreement of 1903, in that agreement 
there were specific provisions relating to the 
issues which could be referred to arbitration 
tribunals, for the purpose of deciding ques-
tions. 

But Madam Deputy Chairman, there are 
questions like the vital interests of a nation—
the independence of a nation, the honour, and 
dignity of a nation these are the three issues 
which cannot be referred to any tribunal for 
the purpose of arbitration, but on all other 
issues of a subsidiary character and of a legal 
nature, it has been the international practice 
from time to time, ever since the Hague 
Convention, to refer these matters to 1he 
international tribunals for the purpose of 
arbitration. And if we once give up the 
principle of arbitration and take to the policy 
of the gun, Madam Deputy Chairman, we will 
be violating not only the established principles 
of international law and the United Nations 
Charter but also principle of human 
adjustments by mutual consultation and 
diplomacy by confer- 
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[Shri K. V. Raghunatha Reddy.] •nee.    This 
is    the  reason,    Madam Deputy Chairman, 
why the Government of India had been 
induced    to take up this attitude in this 
direction. Madam Deputy Chairman, in this 
regard one should not confuse the issue •f 
Kashmir with that of Kutch.   It is asked: If 
once we concede the principle  of reference  
to  an  arbitration tribunal regarding the Kutch    
issue, will not this principle have a dangerous 
extension to that of    Kashmir? Now as far as 
the question of Kashmir is    concerned,    
Madam    Deputy Chairman, it is not an issue 
that can be determined as in the case of 
Kutch. As far as Kashmir is concerned, there 
is no doubt about the territory, about any part 
of the territory.   The main question  
regarding Kashmir is  altogether of a different 
character,       the question being whether 
Kashmir,  as uch, should belong to Pakistan 
or to India and that is a different question 
altogether.   If we try to confuse these two 
issues, we will be only playing directly into 
the hands of    Pakistan because, there, it is 
not relatable in any way to any dispute of    
territory or to any principle international law. 
If we inadvertently mix-up these two issues, 
we will be only playing into the hands of 
Pakistan, and it is against the Interests of 
India.   Therefore I would appeal to the hon. 
Members and the Government not to mix 
these issues and commit the error of what we 
call the misjoinder of issues and it would only 
lead to confusion and injustice. 

Thank you, Madam, for the opportunity 
you have given me. I support the motion 
proposed by the Government. 

 

 

STATEMENT RE FINANCIAL    AND 
ECONOMIC SITUATION IN THE 

COUNTRY 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: Please give 
way to Mr. Bhagat who has to make a 
statement. 

THE MINISTER OF PLANNING (SHRI B. R. 
BHAGAT): Madam, on behalf of Shri T. T. 
Krishnamachari, I beg to lay on the Table of 
the House a copy of the speech made by the 
Finance Minister in the L°k Sabha today on 
the financial and economic situation and the 
proposals that he has made in connection 
therewith. (See Appendix LIII, Annexure No. 
23.) 

SHRI A. D. MANi (Madhya Pradesh) : 
Madam, may I request the hon. Minister to 
give us an idea of these proposals, because 
they are very important? I don't want him to 
read the whole thing, but he can give us the 
gist of it. 

SHEI B. R. BHAGAT: Copies are available. 

THE DEPUTY CHAIRMAN: It is laid on 
the Table and it will be circulated to you. 


